BOARD OF EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT NO. 13

Tuesday – December 20, 2016 Location – ESU #13 Center, 4215 Avenue I, Scottsbluff, NE

REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 PM

I. Call to Order

- **A.** Meeting is governed by the Nebraska Open Meetings Act as posted.
- **B.** The ESU #13 Board reserves the right to rearrange the order of the agenda.
- **C.** The ESU #13 Board reserves the right to convene an executive session in accordance with § 84-1410.
- II. Excuse Absent Board Member(s) (Motion Necessary for Approval)
- III. Approval of Agenda (Motion Necessary for Approval)

A. Consent Action Items (Motion Necessary for Approval)

- 1. Minutes of Regular Meeting
- 2. Treasurer's Report
- 3. Fund Balance
- 4. Budget Report
- 5. Claims for Disbursement

B. Calendar

- 1. **January 10, 2017 –** Regular Meeting 7:00 p.m. ESU #13 Center (Moved up one week)
- 2. **January 22-23, 2017** Legislative Issues Conference Cornhusker Marriott, Lincoln, NE

C. Public Forum

1. Time limit for each person is three (3) minutes; no response or action taken by the Board.

D. Reports

- 1. Doctoral Psychology Internship Consortium Dr. Katie Carrizales, Educational and Behavioral Consultant
- 2. NASB/NASA State Education Conference- Omaha, NE
- 3. AESA 2016 Annual Conference-Savannah, GA
- 4. Administrator's Report (APPENDIX A)
- 5. Head Start Policy Council Meeting Minutes and Child Development Performance Report for November (uploaded to website)

E. Old Business

1. Board Policy Regarding Credit Cards:

Existing Board Policy regarding use and payment of credit cards (Section IV: Fiscal Management; B-7) states:

The Board of Educational Service Unit No. 13 hereby authorizes the acquisition and use of credit cards for purchasing all appropriate goods, services, and supplies. Credit cards shall be maintained by the Administrator or his/her designee to be issued through appropriate procedures as adopted by the Administrator which shall include requiring all credit card purchases to be substantiated by itemized receipts attached to the credit card statement obtained by the individuals to whom the card is issued and by supervisor verification. Any reward points, rebates, or other benefits received from the third-party purchasing card company are and shall remain the property of ESU #13.

This is the second and final reading for the proposed Board policy regarding Credit Cards.

Recommendation: Move to adopt the policy.

2. **Board Policy Regarding Anti-Bullying and Dating Violence Prevention:**

NDE is leading the charge to standardize protocol for response to emergencies in schools. Jerry Ostdiek reviewed our existing policies and recommends that we add several policies related to safety and security. Listed below are the first two policies in the series.

Anti-Bullying Policy - Students

Educational Service Unit No. 13 is to provide a physically safe and emotionally secure environment for students and staff.

The administration and staff are to implement strategies and practices to reinforce and encourage positive behaviors by students. Positive behaviors include non-violence, cooperation, teamwork, understanding, and acceptance of others.

The administration and staff are to implement strategies and practices to identify and prevent inappropriate behaviors by all students, including anti-bullying education for all students. Inappropriate behaviors include bullying, intimidation, and harassment. Bullying means any ongoing pattern of physical, verbal, or electronic abuse on ESU grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by the ESU being used for an ESU purpose by an ESU employee or designee, or at ESU-sponsored activities or ESU-sponsored athletic events; and while away from ESU grounds, if the misconduct materially and substantially interferes with or disrupts the educational environment, the ESU's day-to-day operations, or the education process, regardless of where the student is at the time of engaging in the bullying behavior, the student may be subject to discipline to the extent permitted by law.

<u>Dating Violence Prevention – Students</u>

Educational Service Unit No. 13 is to provide a physically safe and emotionally secure environment for all students and staff. Positive behaviors are encouraged in the educational program and are required of all students and staff. Inappropriate behaviors, including but not limited to, dating violence, will not be tolerated and must be avoided by all students and staff.

Pursuant to Section 79-2, 140, the Legislature has defined (a) "dating violence" to mean a pattern of behavior where one person uses threats of, or actually uses, physical, sexual, verbal, or emotional abuse to control his or her dating partner; and (b) "dating partner" to mean any person, regardless of gender, involved in an intimate relationship with another person primarily characterized by the expectation of affectionate involvement whether casual, serious, or long-term.

Strategies and practices are implemented to reinforce positive behaviors and to discourage and protect others from inappropriate behaviors. Dating violence training, as defined by Section 79-2, 141(4), shall be provided to staff deemed appropriate by the administration. The administration will be responsible for reviewing the ESU's Student Code of Conduct to insure that this policy is reflected therein.

Recommendation: First Reading. No action required.

F. New Business

1. Board Policy regarding Weapons; Use of Metal Detectors; Searches, Seizures, and Arrests; Security; and Access to Buildings:

Continuing with the series of policies regarding NDE's standardized protocol in response to emergencies in schools, we are introducing five new policies to be added to the official Board policies. Jerry Ostdiek has reviewed the policies below.

WEAPONS:

The Board of Educational Service Unit No. 13 believes weapons and other dangerous objects and look-a-likes in ESU facilities cause material and substantial disruption to the ESU environment or present a threat to the health and safety of students, employees and visitors on the ESU premises or property within the jurisdiction of the ESU.

Weapons and other dangerous objects and look-a-likes shall be taken from students and others who bring them onto the ESU property or onto property within the jurisdiction of the ESU or from students who are within the control of the ESU.

Parents of students found to possess weapons or dangerous objects or look-a-likes on ESU property shall be notified of the incident. Confiscation of weapons or dangerous objects shall be reported to the law enforcement officials, and students will be subject to disciplinary action including suspension or expulsion.

Students bringing firearms to the ESU or knowingly possessing firearms at the ESU may be expelled for a period of not less than one year. Students bringing to the ESU or possessing dangerous weapons, including firearms, will be referred to law enforcement authorities. The Administrator shall have the authority to recommend this expulsion requirement be modified for students on a case-by-case basis. For purposes of the portion of this policy, the term "firearm" includes, but is not limited to, any weapon which is designed to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive, the frame or receiver of any such weapon, a muffler or silencer for such a weapon, or any explosive incendiary or poison gas.

Weapons under the control of law enforcement officials shall be exempt from this policy. Firearms also may be possessed by a person for the purpose of using them, with the approval of the ESU, in a historical reenactment, in a hunter education program, or as part of an honor guard. The Program Director may allow authorized persons to display weapons or other dangerous objects or look-a-likes for educational purposes. Such a display shall also be exempt from this policy.

USE OF METAL DETECTORS

When Educational Service Unit No. 13 administration has reasonable cause to believe that weapons are in the possession of unidentified students, when there has been a pattern of weapons found at the ESU or when violence involving weapons has occurred at the ESU or at ESU sponsored events, the administration shall be authorized to use stationary or mobile metal detectors in accordance with procedures approved by the Board.

Any search of a student's person as a result of the activation of the detector shall be conducted in private in accordance with the policy on Searches, Seizures and Arrests.

SEARCHES, SEIZURES AND ARRESTS

Educational Service Unit No. 13 property is held in public trust by the Board. ESU authorities may, without a search warrant, search students, protected student areas, or vehicles driven by students parked on ESU property based on a reasonable and definable suspicion that an ESU policy, rule, regulation or law has been violated.

The search shall be in a manner reasonable in scope to maintain order and discipline in the schools, promote the educational environment, and protect the safety and welfare of students, employees and visitors to the ESU facilities. The furnishing of a locker, desk or other facility or space owned by the ESU and provided as a courtesy to a student, even if the student provides the lock for it, shall not create a protected student area and shall not give rise to an expectation of privacy with respect to the locker, desk or other facility.

ESU authorities may seize any illegal, unauthorized or contraband materials discovered in the search. Items of contraband may include, but are not limited to, nonprescription controlled substances, marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines, barbiturates, apparatus used for controlled substances, alcoholic beverages, tobacco, weapons, explosives, poisons and stolen property. Such items are not to be possessed by a student while they are on ESU property or on property within the jurisdiction of the ESU; while on ESU owned and/or operated transportation; while attending or engaged in ESU activities; and while away from ESU grounds if misconduct will directly affect the good order, efficient management and welfare of the ESU.

Possession of such items will be grounds for disciplinary action including suspension or expulsion and may be reported to local law enforcement officials. The Board believes that illegal, unauthorized or contraband materials may cause materials and substantial disruption to the school environment or presents a threat to the health and safety of students, employees, or visitors on the ESU premises or property within the jurisdiction of the ESU.

The Administrator or Program Directors may release minor students into the custody of a law enforcement officer upon presentation of a court order or warrant for the student's arrest, or to remove a student from the ESU premises if the officer or ESU Administrator has reason to believe that the students has violated the law.

The Program Director or designee will immediately attempt to notify the parent/guardian or responsible relative of the student's release and the place to which the student is reportedly taken, except in cases of child abuse.

SECURITY

The Board of Educational Service Unit No. 13 encourages cooperation with the local law enforcement and the fire authorities and insurance company personnel in planning and carrying out proper security measures to preserve and protect ESU's investment in its physical plant. Buildings constitute one of the greatest capital investments of the ESU and should be protected. Security includes minimizing fire or other safety hazards, reducing the probability of faulty equipment, and keeping records and funds in a safe place. Security also includes having available floor plans of buildings and site plans showing the boundaries and access points.

A key control system shall be established and maintained limiting building access to ESU #13 personnel thus safeguarding against potential entry by unauthorized persons.

Protective devices designed as safeguards against illegal entry and vandalism shall be installed where appropriate. A security guard may be employed when special events or activities are scheduled, or in situations involving special risks.

The Administrator is directed to establish regulations as may be needed to provide for security of building and grounds.

Incidents of illegal entry, theft of school property, vandalism or damage to ESU property from any cause shall be reported by phone to the office of the Administrator and to the appropriate law enforcement agency as soon as discovered. A timely written report of the incident shall be forwarded to the Administrator.

ACCESS TO BUILDINGS

Security for Educational Service Unit No. 13 buildings and grounds (at all times) contributes to the well-being and safety of its students and staff as well as to that of the sites themselves.

The Administrator and/or designee will control access to the ESU buildings and other facilities as appropriate and necessary to protect property, students and personnel.

Card access to buildings are determined and controlled through the issuances of cards. Hours shall be determined by the Administrator and enforced by the building Program Directors.

Program Directors will control access to the ESU buildings and will provide safeguards against unauthorized access to these buildings. Each Program Director, with the Administrator's approval, will develop regulations designed to control the use of the building keys and to ensure that buildings are adequately closed and locked when no authorized personnel are present. Staff or students who fail to obey such regulations may be disciplined, suspended or dismissed.

During regular school hours, flow of traffic into and out of buildings shall be closely monitored and limited to certain doors. Visitors shall be required to check in to show proper identification and reason for being at the school and shall wear name tags identifying them as visitors. This will not apply when parents/guardians have been invited to a classroom or assembly program.

Access to school buildings outside of regular school hours shall be limited to personnel whose work requires it and to sponsors of approved student activities.

Recommendation: Introduction item only. No action required.

2. Head Start/Early Head Start 2017-2018 Continuation Grant Application:

A continuation grant application in the amount of \$2.9 million has been prepared for submission to the Administration for Children and Families for the Head Start and Early Head Start Programs no later than December 31, 2016. The continuation grant includes the school readiness plan, five year goals, and self-assessment results. These reports have been uploaded to the website.

<u>Recommendation:</u> Move to approve the 2017-2018 Continuation Grant Application for Head Start/Early Head Start.

3. Board Member Resignation:

Marilyn Wimmer has submitted her letter of resignation as ESU 13 Board Member effective December 31, 2016. She states "It has been my distinct pleasure and honor, if you will, to have served education, and it's pursuit, these many years. I shall miss this, and will never lose my advocation of/for education"

Recommendation: Move to approve the resignation of Marilyn Wimmer.

IV. Approval of Minutes (Motion Necessary for Approval)

V. Adjournment

ESU 13 BOARD NOTES Dr. Jeff West December 2016

Scottsbluff Office Addition

We have signed off on the new addition and you will be paying what I believe is the last payment. It includes what was held back due to the issues with HVAC and the receptionist area. Fermin said the HVAC system is now working well and the redo of the receptionist area is much better.

The furniture for the new addition conference room and reception area will be delivered in early January.

I am still working with Abbie Winters on external and internal signage. We want to take our time and make sure that we have the right signage in the correct locations to guide traffic both inside and outside. Once I receive Abbie's recommendations, I will ask for feedback from Directors to make sure we haven't missed something. Then we will put it out for bid.

Update on Scottsbluff Location Facility Projects for the 2016-17 Year

Before the board decided to build the new addition, we had talked about a number of projects. Those include:

- A new boiler system and controls in the original building (\$110,000-\$200,000)
- Replacing the walking path around the grounds so our Meridian students can get outside when the weather is nice. (\$70,000)
- Extend the vehicle storage building 2 additional car bays and one larger bay for the 2 buses.
- Concrete work (sidewalks) that are in need of replacement
- Explore most efficient heating options in the Meridian classrooms ((\$35,000)
- Air conditioning in Sixpence Offices ((\$25,000-\$40,000)
- Maintenance free siding on the multi-purpose room and out buildings (garages)
- Parking Lots

Fermin and I met with Barry Swanson, Civil Engineer, from Baker and Associates to discuss the outside projects (parking lots, vehicle storage, walking path). In early November we met with Ben Schmitt, the mechanical engineer who works with Baker and Associates on the inside projects: (boiler/controls, air conditioning, and Meridian classroom heating). I have those estimates and will share them with you at the meeting. We will need to prioritize the projects to determine what we can do this year and what may need to wait until next year.

Sidney Office

Nothing new to report. Waiting to see what presence Cabela's will have in Sidney and then what buildings may be available.

Christmas Break

The office will be closed from December 23 through January 2nd. I will be coming in to check things each day but will probably only work for part of the day.

State ESUCC meetings

I will be in Omaha for state ESUCC meetings on January 4th and 5th at ESU 3.